01O\ AW —

A OO UMM U T T b DD D DD BE B RABD WL LWILWL LW WLWLWLWINDNDDNDDNDNDNDNDNDNDN = === =
W —L OO XAITNUN AW, OOXINITUNARVODNRLOOXIANRAE WL OOOXTITANNRARWNN—,OOXINNDAWN— OO

APPROVED
MINUTES OF THE MILFORD BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING
December 28, 2020
This meeting was conducted pursuant to the State of New Hampshire Emergency Order #12 pursuant to Executive Order
2020-04, temporary modification of public access to meetings under RSA 91-A. As such, the meeting was conducted
online using these connection instructions that were listed on the posted meeting agenda: "The Public is encouraged to par-
ticipate remotely, call in on your phone @ 1-646-558-8656 and enter the meeting ID# 865 0671 3534 and the password is
202056 or join the Zoom Meeting @ https://zoom.us/j/81556027838. Please try to log in 5 minutes before the meeting's
scheduled start time in case you run into any technical difficulties".

PRESENT: Gary Daniels, Chairman (Zoom) John Shannon, Town Administrator (Zoom)
Paul Dargie, Vice Chairman (Zoom) Tina Philbrick, Executive Assistant (Zoom)
Laura Dudziak, Member (excused)
Chris Labonte, Member (Zoom)
David Freel, Member (Zoom)

1.CALL TO ORDER, BOARD OF SELECTMEN INTRODUCTIONS & PUBLIC SPEAKING INSTRUCTIONS:
Chairman Daniels declared that an emergency exists and he was invoking the provisions of RSA 91-A: 2, III (b). Federal,
state, and local officials have determined that gatherings of 10 or more people pose a substantial risk to the community in
its continuing efforts to combat the spread of COVID-19. In concurring with their determination, he also finds that this
meeting is imperative to the continued operation of Town government and services, which are vital to public safety and
confidence during this emergency. As such, this meeting will be conducted without a quorum of this body physically pre-
sent in the same location. Information for accessing this meeting can be found on the Town web site in the red banner.

Chairman Daniels welcomed members of the public accessing this meeting remotely. Even though this meeting is being
conducted in a unique manner under unusual circumstances, the usual rules of conduct and decorum apply. Public com-
ments will be limited to five minutes per person. Any person found to be disrupting this meeting will be asked to cease the
disruption. If the disruptive behavior continues thereafter, that person will be removed from the meeting.

All votes that are taken during this meeting must be done by Roll Call vote. Members from home were asked to state their
name and state whether there was anyone in the room with them during this meeting, which is required under the Right-to-
Know law.

Roll call attendance: Selectman Dargie, yes, (zoom) no one is present. Selectman Labonte yes, present in the BOS
room, and Chairman Daniels yes, (zoom) no one is present. Selectman Freel, yes, (zoom) no one is present.

2. APPOINTMENTS: (Approximate times)

5:30 p.m. - Proclamation for Clare Callahan
Clare Callahan is retiring from the Town Clerks' office. Chairman Daniels read a Proclamation.

WHEREAS, Clare Callahan has served with distinction as a Deputy Town Clerk for the Town of Milford for 15 years; and
WHEREAS, the Town of Milford is most sincerely appreciative of Clare Callahan's long and faithful service to the Town
of Milford

WHEREAS, Clare Callahan has made many lasting contributions to the Town Clerk's Office.

WHEREAS, Clare Callahan is recognized for her unmatched loyalty, unparalleled dedication, and outstanding service;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Milford Board of Selectmen recognize the special efforts and contri-
butions of Clare Callahan, and congratulate her by presenting this proclamation on her 15 years of Service to the Town of
Milford,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board wishes Clare Callahan much success in her retirement.

Given under our hand and seal this 28" day of December 2020

Selectmen Dargie made a motion to approve the proclamation for Clare Callahan. Seconded by Selectman Labonte.
A roll call vote was taken with Selectman Dargie yes, Selectman Labonte yes, Selectman Freel yes, and Chairman
Daniels yes. The motion passed 4/0.

5:35 p.m. - Water Utility’s Permit Upgrade Project 2023 - Water Ultilities Director, Kevin Stetson
In summary: Kevin Stetson gave a brief powerpoint presentation to the Board of Selectmen on future Wastewater Treat-
ment Facility Upgrade Projects.

Chairman Daniels asked who would be paying for the warrant articles. Kevin said tax-payers. Milford’s newly issued per-
mit requirements were effective on November 1, 2020. Water Utilities will need to process improvement upgrades; they
have three years to become compliant. The construction project is being planned for 2023.


https://zoom.us/j/81556027838

64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 12/28/2020

The original plan would have been $11,737,000 but the Water Commissioners have completed several projects over time
which lessened the cost. Even after the upgrades, several additional projects will need to be completed in the amount of
$1,174,000

e In 2021 $190,240 will be taken from the Sewer Capital Reserve Account for Evaluation of Treatment Alternatives
for the final design.

In 2022 there will be a warrant article for approximately $450,000 for Final Design/Project Bidding.
In 2023 there will be a warrant article for approximately $5,977,000 for Project Construction.

Total project will be $6,447,000.

2023 Plant upgrade project estimated taxpayers costs:

Project Cost $6,447,000

Percentage rate 2.5% over 20 years

Payments: monthly $ 34,056.86

Payments: Quarterly $102,170.58

Payments: Annually $408,682.32

There are 5,633 water utility customers

Semi-Annual Amount per customer is $36.28

VVVYVVY

Selectman Freel asked when the warrant articles would be presented. Kevin repeated the above information. Dale White,
Water Commissioner said so far, the Sewer users have paid for all upgrades. We are required by law to upgrade the system.
They could find savings during the engineering process. This is too much money to ask of just the sewer users. The sewer
treatment plant benefits the whole town of Milford and we feel that the taxpayers should share the burden.

Selectman Labonte asked about parcels. Kevin said it was a rough estimate. Selectman Labonte asked what the difference
would be if you had to adjust it to user rates and dumping fees. Kevin said the water treatment plant was originally paid for
by the town's taxpayers. We will get a low-interest loan and some principle forgiveness is available to us.

Selectman Dargie said this should be translated to a tax rate calculation and Finance can help with that. He gave some
suggestions on how to present this to the taxpayers when the time comes.

Bob Courage, Water Commissioner, reiterated what Keven and Dale said. The Town of Wilton will also have to pay
14.89% of this as they benefit from the services. We are also looking at State and Federal Grant Funding and we are on a
high priority list to get some of that funding. We currently have a bond item on the warrant for next year. We will have a
final number prior to the Deliberative Session. That bond will be paid for by our user fees.

Selectman Freel asked how long the new permit was good for. Bob said five years. The last one lasted fifteen years. Dale
said the upgrades need to be done during the next three years with the new permit even though it's good for five years. Se-
lectman Freel said what happens if the warrant article fails. Why can't we just put it in the water utility budget? Bob said if
we are not in compliance we could get fined daily and we still have to do the upgrades. This isn’t unique to Milford. We
need a warrant article to bond the funding. We need to have a 20-year bond so we can afford the payments.

Mike Thornton, a Milford resident, agrees that the town should do this. He has concerns about paying an equal share with
the users of the system when he doesn't use it. It's a five-year permit and you want us to do a 20-year bond. Bob said we
have to have these improvements completed or will be subject to fines. We only have 3,000 sewer customers in the system.

Selectman Labonte said with Wilton paying a percentage of it, will they have to have a warrant article. Bob said yes. Peter
Basiliere, Milford resident, said if the warrant article fails we could hold a special meeting. He asked how long will the
equipment last. Bob said the equipment could last 40 years. We should clarify who gets to vote on the warrant articles.
Chairman Daniels asked if the $6.4 million included Wilton's share. Bob said yes.

5:55 p.m. - Route 101A/Route 13 Oval Improvement Project - Community Development Director, Lincoln Daley
(tabled from December 14, 2020)

In summary: Funding for the project originally came in 2006. This is an update to the Route 101A/Route 13 Oval Im-
provement Project scheduled to begin in 2021. Phase I was completed in 2018. Phase II consists of two projects and the
town 20% match is $412,250.21 to be funded by the previously appropriated matching balance. The project would begin in
2021 with construction to begin in mid/late 2022. Lincoln requested that the Board authorize Administrator Shannon to
sign the agreement.



121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 12/28/2020

Project 1: Nashua Street/Clinton Street/Tonella Road Improvements - This is to widen Nashua Street to accommodate a
turning lane and connect sidewalks to the above streets.

Project 2: Milford Downtown Oval Improvements - This is to enhance pedestrian safety/access and improvement vehicular
throughout the Oval area along Nashua Street, Elm Street, and Mont Vernon Street, and South Street and provide parking
opportunities.

Chairman Daniels asked if it will come back to the Board for review before proceeding. Lincoln said yes. The final sign off
will include the Board. Selectman Labonte asked about a traffic light next to CVS. Lincoln said originally they didn't meet
the criteria to include a light. CVS contributed $175,000 for a light and those funds will terminate in 2022. It’s still TBD
for the design.

Selectman Labonte asked for more information in the second project. Lincoln said the second project would focus on the
Oval area along Middle Street, School Street, and Union Street. Selectman Labonte asked how we can get out of the
agreement if we don't like it. Lincoln said we already have the 20% match for these two projects. This is relying on stake-
holder involvement and he would be surprised if it doesn’t go forward.

Selectman Labonte said if the Board doesn’t feel it’s a fit for Milford, they have no way to stop this. Lincoln said the de-
sign should meet the needs of the town and the Board. Selectman Freel is against a traffic light. Selectman Freel said the
$400,000 could be used for something else; there are other priorities for the town. Lincoln said the money has already been
appropriated, we are not asking for additional funding. The community has desired this for many years.

Chairman Daniels asked about the light at CVS. Lincoln said the light may not be warranted at that intersection. We have
funds if needed but we won't know until we evaluate it further. Chairman Daniels asked about public hearings during the
evaluation phase. Lincoln said yes, it will be a year-long process. Chairman Daniels asked if we were going to deal with
the same construction company that engineered the Oval changes. Lincoln said no.

Chairman Daniels asked if Lincoln was looking for approval to start the engineering phase. Lincoln said he needs the ap-
proval to start the overall process, phases 1 through 3. Selectman Freel said if this was to be approved, we can’t get the
$400,000 back. Lincoln said the warrant articles were specifically for this project. Chairman Daniels said unused money
will go back to where ever it came from and this remaining money would go back to the tax-payers.

Selectman Labonte clarified that this doesn't authorize the construction. Lincoln said this is to use the $2,000,000 in all
four phases. The Board has to sign off on the final design. This covers authorizing construction.

Selectmen Dargie made a motion to move forward as proposed by the Community Development Director with the
understanding that this will come before the Board before the construction stage. Seconded by Chairman Daniels.

Pete Basiliere said all the warrant articles for this project were approved by voters. Some of these funds will be helping
local workers and contractors that will be participating in the project. Selectman Labonte still has concerns about it being
an acceptable plan for the Board.

A roll call vote was taken with Selectman Dargie yes, Selectman Labonte yes, Selectman Freel yes, and Chairman
Daniels yes. All were in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

Selectmen Dargie made a motion to authorize Town Administrator Shannon to sign the documents. Seconded by
Selectman Freel. A roll call vote was taken with Selectman Dargie yes, Selectman Labonte yes, Selectman Freel yes,
and Chairman Daniels yes. All were in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

6:05 p.m. - BROX Community Land Conservation Easement - Conservation Chair, Andy Hughes and Conservation
Member, Chris Costantino

In summary: An Alteration of Terrain Updated Permit (dated 10/26/20) was submitted by the Town for the sand and gravel
operation on the property referred to as the Brox Community Land. One of the conditions of this permit is that the Town of
Milford (Town) will put 75 +/-acres into a conservation easement (Plan sheet 1 of 9 note #11). The Board of Selectmen, at
their October 14, 2019 meeting, accepted the Milford Conservation Commission's (MCC) offer to facilitate this easement



177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 12/28/2020

process. The Conservation Commission is suggesting that the Board include the remaining cost of $30,000 in their 2021
budget.

Selectman Labonte asked if it was appropriate for the town to come up with $30,000 seeing that this is a condition of the
AoT permit in regards to the Gravel Operation that was at no cost to the tax-payers. If there was no gravel operation there
would be no reason to have this. Andy Hughes said what was written was an assurance from the town that one way or an-
other either out of the budget or through payment from the gravel operation, that the $30,000 would be paid for by the town
to the Fish and Game for the Stewardship fund.

Selectman Labonte repeated, it was put in front of the voters at no cost and that doesn't mean it should be taken out of the
profits. The Town of Milford doesn’t pay for the permit. Lincoln said the contractor is paying for the AoT permit.

Chairman Daniels asked how much was in the Conservation fund and how come we can’t take the $30,000 from that fund.
Andy said the town went forward to do the Gravel Extraction Project. This is a State-imposed condition as part of doing
this project. We have about $95,000 in the Conservation Land Fund and we don’t believe the land fund balance should be
used for this project.

Selectman Dargie asked what the status was of the AoT permit. Administrator Shannon said the state has it and they are
going through their process right now. They have not given us any indication of which way they were leaning. Selectman
Labonte repeated that the warrant article wasn’t going to cost the tax-payers any money, that’s his concern. We are losing a
third of the year’s income just to pay for this. He agrees that this shouldn’t fall on Conservation.

Chris Costantino, Conservation member, asked about a line item that carries expenses for the gravel operation, how does
that get funded. Paul Calabria, Finance Director said a token amount was left in the line item in case something came up.
There is only $100 in there. Anything in the operating budget is funded through the tax-payers. Chris asked how that mon-
ey gets tracked. Paul said when the gravel operation was in process we had a line item for the revenue. No revenue went
in this year.

Selectman Freel clarified that when the Gravel operation is in full swing, the town is making over $100,000. Does the
easement have to be in place before we get the AoT permit and start pulling gravel out again? Andy said no. For the
$20,000 grant to come in from the state, the easement has to be in place by June 30™. Selectman Freel asked why we can’t
add it to the contract of who’s hauling out the gravel. Chris said that is why we are here, to figure out how to pay for this.

Selectman Labonte said there was a line in the contract that said the contractor was to pay all expenses that came up. Lin-
coln said that was an understanding of the cost of the permit associated with the contract. The easement was unforeseen as
part of the overall process. Selectmen Freel said we should add this into the budget and add a little more per yard when the
gravel operation starts back up.

Selectman Freel made a motion to add $30,000 to the operating budget to cover the stewardship easement for next
year. Seconded by Selectman Dargie.

Selectman Dargie said this is the cost of doing business. If it isn’t done and the operation doesn’t start up again then we
would not be selling gravel. Selectman Freel agrees. Selectman Labonte said we should hold off until Town Council re-
views this. Chairman Daniels said there is already a contract in place and this would change the terms of the contract in the
middle of it.

Selectman Labonte read some of the contract and said this cost is a result of the permit. He repeated that he thinks the
Board should hold off until we are advised by Town Counsel. He asked Andy when he needed an answer on this? Andy
said it can be put off but lawyers take a long time so it can’t be held off until the last minute.

Selectman Freel removed his motion. Selectman Dargie made a motion to table this until the second meeting in Janu-
ary. Seconded by Selectman Freel. A roll call vote was taken with Selectman Dargie yes, Selectman Labonte yes,
Selectman Freel yes, and Chairman Daniels yes. The motion passed 4/0.

6:15 p.m. - Deliberative Session and March Election — Town Moderator, Pete Basiliere
In Summary: Pete Basiliere gave an overview of what to expect to host the Deliberative Session and Town Vote.



233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 12/28/2020

Selectman Dargie asked Pete what his preference would be. Pete said to have the Deliberative in person. Tina Philbrick,
Town Administrators’ assistant said a decision has to be made soon on the location so it can be properly posted.

Selectman Freel asked about going for an extension. Pete said both the Town and School are governed by SB2 and the
meeting could only be postponed by 72 hours. If the Governor allows it to be postponed further you won’t have a new
budget until you’re almost halfway through the year.

Selectman Dargie made a motion to hold the Deliberative Session at the Milford High School on the January 30,
contingent on the School Board allowing us to use their rooms. Seconded by Selectman Freel. A roll call vote was
taken with Selectman Dargie yes, Selectman Labonte yes, Selectman Freel yes, and Chairman Daniels yes. The mo-
tion passed 4/0.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS (regarding items that are not on the agenda) There were no public comments at this time.

4. DECISIONS - Selectman Freel asked that 4. a) 4 be removed from the consent calendar. Selectman Dargie made
a motion to approve the consent calendar except for 4. a) 4. Seconded by Selectman Labonte. A roll call vote was
taken with Selectman Dargie yes, Selectman Labonte yes, Selectman Freel yes, and Chairman Daniels yes. All were
in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

a) CONSENT CALENDAR.

1. Approval of Petition and Pole License one (1) pole — Savage Road

2. Conservation Commission Request Acceptance of $6,204.16 from the Ghost Train Rail Trail Race, to be used for
maintenance and improvements to the Rail Trail.

3. Request to re-appoint Rodney Dellafelice as a Full-Member to the Conservation Commission. Term Expires 2023.

4. Request for Acceptance and Appropriation of Gifts of Property Under $5,000 (31:95(e)) — donation to the Milford Fire
Department from the NH EMS Bureau

* 1 Protexus Cordless Electrostatic Sprayer from NH EMS Bureau - $645.91

* 1 container of 200 Protexus tablets from NH EMS Bureau - $200.00

Selectman Freel asked what the protexus was used for. Administrator Shannon said it’s a disinfectant to use for COVID.

Selectman Dargie made a motion to approve 4. a) 4 from the consent calendar. Seconded by Selectman Labonte. A
roll call vote was taken with Selectman Dargie yes, Selectman Labonte yes, Selectman Freel yes, and Chairman Dan-
iels yes. All were in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

b) OTHER DECISIONS

1. DRAFT Warrant Articles — Tonight's decision is to either exclude or include the following warrant articles for the
March 2020 vote. There was a discussion on articles 27, Annual Labor Day Parade; 28, - Summer Band Concerts: 29 - In-
dependence Day Celebration Fireworks: 30- Pumpkin Festival; and 31- Memorial, Veterans & Labor Day Parades and
Recognition about giving the 2021 appropriations back to the tax-payers and putting the articles on the warrant for next
year with the same amounts or different amounts.

DRA said we could fund those activities with the appropriated money and not have to put these articles on next year’s war-
rants. Selectman Dargie said we spent some on band concerts but there are some monies remaining. He would like to leave
that one on. We also spent money on the Parades and recognition of buying flags. He's ok with taking the others off.

Paul Calabria, Finance Director said there was $2,950 left in the band concert account. Selectman Dargie would be ok with
putting the balance of $6,050 into the regular budget and moving the $2,950 forward and adding another $6,050. We could
leave the warrant article as it is for $9,000.

Selectman Labonte wants to give the unspent money back to the tax-payers and put all the warrant articles back on. Chair-
man Daniels said these articles tend to pass every year. DRA said we could also put those out there with the amounts speci-
fied on them with a notation that the money would be spent out of the 2020 budget. Selectman Labonte asked if the war-
rants get defeated does the money go back to the tax-payers. Chairman Daniels said no. Selectman Dargie asked how much
was spent from the parade support warrant. Paul said he will get that information.

Pete Basiliere said one of the reasons to take them off the warrant is to shorten the length of the Deliberative Session.
Chairman Daniels said the comment he hears most every year is the length of the warrant. This is a way to shorten it. Se-

5



290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 12/28/2020

lectman Freel is leaning towards putting these in the budget. People don't have a problem with smaller numbers. He agrees
with Chairman Daniels and Pete about the number of warrant.

Wade Campbell, Milford Resident, said they didn't choose 100% to cancel the pumpkin festival; they were slightly forced
into it by the State. Many events in the town were canceled because we couldn't have large gatherings. The amount of
warrant articles put on the warrant every year is overwhelming. It's a wasted effort to give the money back and take it back
again. Selectman Labonte said these things were canceled because it was the proper thing to do.

Selectman Dargie made a motion in reference to RSA 32:7 V, the remaining money of the 2020 appropriations for
warrant articles, 27, 28, 29, 30, and 31 be encumbered for one additional fiscal year and that any monies that have
been expended from those five accounts in 2020 be added to the 2021 budget. The motion failed for a second.

Chairman Daniels agrees with the motion except for putting it into the budget. If it’s in the budget, it becomes part of the
default budget.

Selectman Dargie made a motion that warrant articles, 27, 29, and 30 be encumbered for one additional fiscal year
and be removed from the warrant. Seconded by Chairman Daniels.

Selectman Freel asked if they were leaving articles 28 and 31 in because there’s a balance. Selectman Dargie said yes.
Selectman Labonte still doesn’t want to do this; it’s going to be confusing. Chairman Daniels said you can add that infor-
mation into the voters’ guide. Selectman Freel agreed. Selectman Labonte asked how the tax-payers are getting the voters
guides this year. Administrator Shannon said they are being mailed.

A roll call vote was taken with Selectman Dargie yes, Selectman Labonte no, Selectman Freel yes, and Chairman
Daniels yes. The motion passed 3/1 with Selectman Labonte opposed.

Selectman Dargie made a motion to remove articles 14, Bridge Repair; 15, DPW vehicles, 19, Fire Apparatus, 20,
Town Facilities Renovation, 21, Ambulance Vehicle Replacement, 22, Keyes Park Expansion, and 24 Public Safety
Equipment from the warrant. Seconded by Chairman Daniels.

Selectman Labonte feels that warrant article 24 should stay on the warrant. If the communications warrant article doesn't
pass, we may need this one. He feels the same way about articles 19 and 21. The voters should decide if they want to fund
these or not. It would be less of a tax impact if we can continue to fund these.

Selectman Freel doesn’t understand why some of this isn’t in the budget. Chairman Daniels said if the budget doesn’t pass
and we are in default, what gets cut and what doesn’t. We are asking voters to spend a lot of money and the last year has
been a hardship for many people.

Rick Riendeau, Public Works Director, said he doesn’t think the bridge capital reserve needs to be funded this year. We
still have about $600,000 in that account. Selectman Labonte said it’s noted on the bottom of each warrant article that the
Board either recommended or didn’t recommend the warrant article. It can also be noted in the voters’ guide. Chairman
Daniels said it sends mixed messages to the voters; if you didn't want it, then why put it on the warrant. Selectman Dargie
is open for an amendment if a Board member wants to remove one and it will give us a yes vote.

Selectman Freel asked if Finance knows what we have in these funds. Paul said he will get that information. Selectman
Labonte is okay with removing warrant number 14 but would like to hear what the Public Works Director thinks about 15.
Rick said he would rather it stay on the warrant. Selectman Labonte would like to keep 15 and 19. He asked Rick about
article 20. Rick said that was based on the HVAC system. One bid came in very high and the other was a little over what
we have money for. It would be good to have a capital reserve for boilers and things.

Paul Calabria gave the balances of the Capital Reserve Accounts:

Bridge Repair - $682,000
DPW Vehicles - $120,000
Fire Apparatus - $100,000
Town Facilities - $100,000
Ambulance Vehicle Replacement - $100,000
Keyes Park Expansion - $ 59,000



347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 12/28/2020

Public Safety Communications Equipment - $§ 60,000

Selectman Labonte asked where we were on the HVAC system. Rick said we spent some money to get the engineering
done. Selectman Labonte would like to keep article 20. He would be okay if Ambulance wasn’t funded this year. He
would like article 24 to stay. He asked about article 22. Arene Berry, Recreation Director said the Board authorized the
expenditure of the $59,000. Once the study is complete the balance in that account will be zero. Selectman Dargie said the
capital reserve accounts are used as a down payment. You pay a little more on interest if you don’t use those accounts.
Some accounts need a healthy balance.

Selectman Freel is okay with articles 14, 21, and 22, and 24 being removed for this year. Selectman Labonte asked if the
communications article didn't pass, how many emergency services would be looking to replace radios right away. Eric
Schelberg, Ambulance Director, said Ambulance already has a warrant article in to expend from the Public Safety Commu-
nication Equipment for portable radios. We have two portable radios that will need to be replaced. Chief Viola, Milford PD
also has two portable radios in their budget. Rick said DPW doesn’t have any radios in their budget this year. Ken Flaher-
ty, Fire Chief said if the operating budget fails, they won’t have any money to replace radios because it was removed from
his line-item last year. Selectman Dargie withdrew his original motion.

Selectman Dargie made a motion to remove articles 14, Bridge Repair; 21, Ambulance Vehicle Replacement, and 24
Public Safety Equipment from the warrant. Seconded by Selectman Freel. A roll call vote was taken with Selectman
Dargie yes, Selectman Labonte no, Selectman Freel yes, and Chairman Daniels yes. The motion passed 3/1 with Se-
lectman Labonte opposed.

WARRANT ARTICLE 5 - WADLEIGH LIBRARY HVAC/Electrical Repair - $995,000 BOND

Selectman Freel clarified that there was nothing we can do about articles 5 and 13 because it’s Library stuff. Chairman
Daniels said according to DRA it’s our warrant and we can do something about it. We usually don’t because the Library
Trustees come up with those numbers. Selectman Freel asked if there was something we could do about the number.
Chairman Daniels said it could be adjusted at the Deliberative Session.

Kathy Parenti, Chair of the Library Trustees, said this warrant article is for repairs and replacements that need to happen.
Paul Calabria asked about the donations received by the library, how much do they have to put towards the repairs. Kathy
Parenti said the funds pledged were for the addition that didn’t happen, since that warrant article didn’t pass, we don’t have
that money. We have $500,000 in our Library fund and we will cover whatever the warrant article doesn’t pay for.

WARRANT ARTICLE 10 - NASHUA STREET PEDESTRIAN SAFETY and SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT
PROJECT - $871,924 (State pays $697,539; Town pays $174,385)

Chairman Daniels made a motion to remove articles 10 and 11 from the warrant. Seconded by Selectman Labonte.
It's an 80/20 match but we still are on the hook for a considerable amount of money. He feels it's a want, not a need. Se-
lectman Dargie is in favor of both of the projects. If they get removed he is planning to do petition warrant articles to put
them back on the warrant. Selectman Labonte agrees with Chairman Daniels. He said there are unknowns as far as mainte-
nance costs for the sidewalk upkeep. Chairman Daniels said we may need to buy or repair sidewalk plows sooner if these
sidewalks are built. Selectman Freel agrees with Chairman Daniels and Selectman Labonte. He doesn’t think it’s a big
deal walking in that area.

Lincoln Daley, Community Development Director, said these are two different projects and the Board doesn’t have to vote
for both of them in this cycle. Both are in high-priority areas and if we don't fund them we lose state funding. Pete
Basiliere agrees with Lincoln and these should be considered separately. There are proposals for new buildings on
Ponemah Hill Road and there will be an increase in walkers and traffic. Selectman Labonte referenced sidewalk plows also
including snow removal.

Lincoln said sidewalks are part of our transportation network. They are important for people who don’t rely on cars. He
brought up federal funding again. Chairman Daniels asked if there was any desire to split the two articles. Selectman Freel
said he would be more in favor of Nashua Street. Chairman Daniels is still opposed to this warrant article. Lincoln said
people don't walk in that area is because it isn't safe to walk. Wade Campbell said people use the rail roadbed to walk in-
stead of walking on Nashua Street. Chairman Daniels agreed to vote on each article separately.



403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 12/28/2020

A roll call vote was taken with Selectman Dargie no, Selectman Labonte yes, Selectman Freel yes, and Chairman
Daniels yes. The motion passed 3/1 with Selectman Dargie opposed. Article 10 will be removed from the warrant.

WARRANT ARTICLE 11 - OSGOOD ROAD, MELENDY ROAD, AND ARMORY ROAD PEDESTRIAN
SAFETY SIDEWALK AND BICYCLE LANE PROJECT - $797,872 (State pays $638,298; Town pays $159,574)

Selectman Labonte said he could be in favor of article 11 if it were modified to go to Adams Field. Chairman Daniels said
you are taking away parking. He remains opposed.

A roll call vote was taken with Selectman Dargie no, Selectman Labonte yes, Selectman Freel yes, and Chairman
Daniels yes. The motion passed 3/1 with Selectman Dargie opposed. Article 11 will be removed from the warrant.

WARRANT ARTICLE 12 - RECONSTRUCTION OF TOWN ROADS - $400,000

Selectman Dargie said we should be spending about $700,000 per year on roads. He would like to remove article 12 and
add $400,000 to the operating budget for road repairs. He would also like to find out what the default budget is. Paul Ca-
labria said the default budget number is $15,756,541. The Town’s budget is $15,776,568. Selectman Dargie said these are
only $20,000 apart so adding $400,000 isn’t a big deal.

Selectman Dargie made a motion to remove warrant article 12 and add $400,000 to the operating budget for road
repairs. The motion failed for lack of a second.

Selectman Labonte wants to keep this warrant article on the warrant. The voters should decide. This is a non-lapsing ap-
propriation if we don’t use all of it we can use it the following year. Selectman Dargie said with a non-lapsing appropria-
tion you are given five years to spend the money. Selectman Labonte asked if the Public Works Director if he had a plan
for the $400,000. Rick said he didn’t have that information yet. We are getting into the harder projects; he could probably
use about $1,000,000 just on Amherst Street. Having $700,000 a year is a good number.

Selectman Freel is in favor of keeping this warrant article on and maybe increasing it to $500,000 given the conditions of
the roads. Selectman Labonte said he isn’t opposed to increasing it but for this year we should keep it at $400,000. Select-
man Freel said we can back off on the amount when it’s time to do the Water Department projects. Selectman Labonte
asked what the goal was in having surplus money left over at the end of the year. Paul Calabria said we don't budget with a
surplus. Selectman Labonte said last year and this year there was around $300,000 leftover. Should we be dropping the
budget another $100,000? Chairman Daniels said we will be talking about the budget over the next few weeks.

WARRANT ARTICLE 13 - WADLEIGH LIBRARY CAPITAL RESERVE - $150,000

Kathy Parenti, Chair of the Library Trustees, said this warrant article is to start a capital reserve fund that we currently don’t
have. Selectman Freel said most of the capital reserve accounts are for between $20,000 and $40,000, why is this one so
big? Kathy said they decided to start big it can be lowered at the Deliberative Session.

WARRANT ARTICLE 14 - BRIDGE REPAIR AND/OR REPLACEMENT CAPITAL RESERVE - $75,000 - Arti-
cle 14 will be removed from the warrant.

WARRANT ARTICLE 21 - AMBULANCE VEHICLE REPLACEMENT CAPITAL RESERVE - $25,000 - Article
21 will be removed from the warrant.

WARRANT ARTICLE 24 - PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT CAPITAL
RESERVE - $20,000 - Article 24 will be removed from the warrant.

WARRANT ARTICLE 27 - ANNUAL LABOR DAY PARADE SUPPORT - $10,000 - Article 27 will be removed
from the warrant.

WARRANT ARTICLE 28 - SUMMER BAND CONCERTS SUPPORT - $9,000

$6,050 expended, $2,950 remaining.



459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 12/28/2020

WARRANT ARTICLE 29 - INDEPENDENCE DAY CELEBRATION FIREWORKS - $8,500 - Article 29 will be
removed from the warrant.

WARRANT ARTICLE 30 - PUMPKIN FESTIVAL SUPPORT - $8,000 - Article 30 will be removed from the war-
rants.

5. TOWN STATUS REPORT -

a. Surplus and Encumbrances - Finance Director, Paul Calabria

In Summary: We have received our 2019 preliminary audit. Our Undesignated Fund Balance at 12/31/19 is $4,320,234.
This represents an increase of $418,889 over the 12/31/18 Undesignated Fund Balance. Paul estimated that the projected
surplus at 12/31/20 for the Town of Milford will be $338,000 or 2.16% of the approved budget. Coupled with the BOS
action on 12/14/20, this will result in a projected Surplus in 2020 for $632,000. The projected 12/31/20 Undesignated Fund
Balance is $4,952,234.

Paul asked the BOS to discuss encumbering the following items and subsequently removing them from the 2021 budget: If
the BOS were to make a motion to approve this request, the 2021 budget increase over the 2020 approved budget would be
1.9% before warrant articles.

1.) $104,650 (2) Police SUV’s
2)) $68,503 (1) DPW Truck
3) $52,983 (1) Ambulance response vehicle

Selectman Labonte doesn’t want to encumber any money to spend in the 2021 budget. If we keep encumbering items and
go into default budget we may not get the police vehicles. He wants the tax-payers to vote on the budget presented to them
and give the surplus money back to the voters.

Selectman Labonte made a motion to not encumber any money out of the 2021 budget for these three requests. Se-
conded by Chairman Daniels.

Selectman Dargie said a default budget is a bottom-line number we would still be able to buy the vehicles but you would
have to choose it over something else. It's not a no means no. Encumbering it in the previous year doesn’t take it out two
years later. Selectman Freel agrees with Selectman Labonte. If the vehicles are needed they can buy them but to buy them
just because we have a surplus is not the thing to do. Selectman Labonte said all three departments had these proposed in
their 2021 budget.

Selectman Dargie said the proposed budget is currently $20,000 higher than the default budget. If one or more of these
vehicles were taken out of the proposed budget, the proposed budget would be below the default budget would almost
guarantee it to pass. There will be no difference as far as tax rate with it being in the proposed or paid out of encumbered
funds.

Rick Riendeau, Public Works Director, said he's asking for a vehicle this year because we had two go down this year. One
will not make an inspection next year and that one is in the budget. He didn't anticipate having two go down this year so
it's an unexpected expense. Selectman Labonte said buying this vehicle out of surplus removes the money out of the 2021
budget so that it still wouldn’t allow two vehicles to be purchased. Rick said no, that is not how he presented it. It was one
unexpected for this year and one planned for next year in 2021. Selectman Labonte wanted clarification that if we were to
buy this from surplus, there would be no vehicle from the 2021 budget.

Chairman Daniels said this would replace the unexpected vehicle that went down but Director Riendeau would still have an
expected vehicle in the 2021 budget. Rick said yes. Chairman Daniels said he thinks the memo from the Finance Director
doesn’t take into account the second vehicle. Selectman Dargie agreed.

Selectman Labonte asked if the two police vehicles would not be in the budget for next year. Chairman Daniels said that is
what he understands. He said that DPW is asking for one vehicle to be funded from 2020 funds and one from 2021 funds.
Selectman Labonte is still questioning the memo. Chairman Daniels repeated that the memo is incorrect.

A roll call vote was taken with Selectman Dargie no, Selectman Labonte yes, Selectman Freel yes, and Chairman
Daniels yes. The motion passed 3/1 with Selectman Dargie opposed.

9



516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 12/28/2020

Selectman Dargie made a motion to encumber one DPW truck for $68,503 but still leave a second truck in the budg-
et for 2021. Seconded by Chairman Daniels.

Selectman Freel asked if this were to fail, does DPW have enough money in their budget for the two vehicles that they
need. Chairman Daniels said if this were to fail, whether the budget passed or not there would only be one vehicle. Paul
Calabria said yes, the 2021 budget has only one DPW vehicle in it. Chairman Daniels said what we are voting on is to re-
place the truck that's down. Selectman Freel asked what kind of truck was down. Rick said it's a one-ton dump truck. We
had that truck and a half-ton pickup that went down this year and won't pass inspection. Selectman Freel asked about the
cost of repair. Rick said he would get those numbers to him, they were higher than what he would want to spend on an 18-
year-old vehicle.

Selectman Labonte said a majority of what the vehicle does is trash and he feels it could wait. Selectman Freel said if you
add $70,000 to the budget, it’s still inline and no one will know that it’s for a truck. Selectman Freel agrees with Selectman
Labonte to just add it to the budget. Selectman Labonte isn’t looking to add it to the budget. He brought up the surplus and
doesn’t want to keep adding to the proposed budget going forward.

Chairman Daniels asked what the budget would be if we added all this plus an additional truck. Paul said four are already
in the budget, adding another $74,000 would bring it up another half percent from a 3.4% increase to a 3.9% increase over
the 2020 approved budget.

Selectman Labonte said if we encumber no money and we don’t add anything to the 2021 budget, as it stands right now
what is the increase over the 2020 budget. Paul repeated, it was 3.4%. Selectman Labonte said encumbering money some-
times doesn’t project what the actual increase it. He repeated that it should be put in front of the voters. The budget
shouldn’t be increased for the second truck.

Selectman Freel asked would there be an issue with work if you didn’t get the DPW truck next year. Rick said they would
do what they have to do. If needed we grab another truck and make it work. Selectman Freel asked what kind of vehicle
was already in the budget. Rick said one ton.

A roll call vote was taken with Selectman Dargie yes, Selectman Labonte no, Selectman Freel no, and Chairman
Daniels no. The motion failed 3/1 with Selectman Dargie in support. Chairman Daniels asked if the money has to
be encumbered at a specific time. Paul Calabria said by December 31%.

b. Fund Balance Analysis - Finance Director, Paul Calabria
In summary: Paul said he would have more information at the first meeting after the budget is approved in 2021 and once
we talk about voting to reduce taxation in the fall if that happens.

He had one more encumbrance item; the Assessing Department, out of the unspent 2020 budget is looking to have $6,700
document scanning services/preservation. There was $10,000 in the budget and she only spent $3,300 on it. Selectman
Dargie asked if she put money in next year's budget for this. Paul said yes she wants to add to it.

Selectman Dargie made a motion to encumber $6,700 in the Assessing budget for document preservation. Seconded
by Chairman Daniels.

Selectman Labonte said he doesn't know enough about this to vote on this and it wasn't in the packet. Selectman Freel
doesn't understand what preservation is. Paul explained that it was documentation conversion from paper to digital. She put
$5,000 in the 2021 budget for document conversion. She would use the $6,700 plus $5,000 to do the additional conversion.

Chairman Daniels said if she couldn’t do the amount she expected this year due to COVID, why would we expect to do
more next year. Paul said the vaccine is starting to hit and hopefully by the second half of 2021 she is hoping more will get
done. Selectman Labonte said if we don’t encumber the money we may be able to shuffle money around in the 2021 budg-
et.

A roll call vote was taken with Selectman Dargie yes, Selectman Labonte no, Selectman Freel no, and Chairman
Daniels no. The motion failed 1/3 with Selectman Dargie in support.

6. DISCUSSIONS:
10



573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 12/28/2020

a. Municipal Budget Committee Warrant Article Discussion -
In Summary: George Hoyt asked the Board to include a warrant article to form a Municipal Budget Committee for the
Town of Milford.

Chairman Daniels said the statute allows the town to create a municipal budget committee. The committee would take over
what the School Board, Selectmen, Library Trustees, Village Districts and Water Commissioners do with their budgets. The
members would be elected by the citizens, not appointed by the Moderator.

George Hoyt, Milford Resident, referenced the page in the BOS package that explained what a municipal budget committee
was. He feels that a budget committee should be voted in by the people, and not an appointed position. Hampton has a
municipal committee and it’s worked well for them.

Chairman Daniels said the Municipal Association said that all government entities that have budgets would give their au-
thority to this committee. There would be twelve members elected for three-year terms. There would be one member of the
Board of Selectmen, School Board, and any other entity that would be taking over their budgets.

Administrator Shannon said for clarification, it's three to twelve members and they are either voted on by the town or ap-
pointed by the moderator and that is the decision that needs to be put before the voters.

Pete Basiliere, Town Moderator, asked what problem was this trying to solve. George Hoyt said it was an idea that he
wanted to bring forward. He is for making the town more democratic in any way that he can. Pete said there aren't any
problems with the Budget Advisory Committee and the work that it does for the Select Board or the School Board. Often
these boards are in close agreement and the voters do have a choice. If you think that the Budget Advisory Committee is
unrepresentative then you should say so. As Moderator, he has had difficulty filling the School Budget Committee in the
last couple of years during a time of great turmoil. He doesn’t have a problem if you want to make this elected position but
has serious concerns about the impact that a municipal budget committee would have on the way we operate our town.
Milford has always had the Board create the budget and then manage it after it’s approved; it’s always worked fine for us.

Selectman Freel said you already have five elected Board members, and an advisory committee, adding another Board just
makes it more than what it needs to be. He agrees with Pete. He wouldn’t support this the way it is.

George said he feels that if a committee’s recommendation is going to be listed on the ballot and it has a significant impact
on how warrant articles are going to be voted on by the people, he thinks that committee should be an elected position and
not appointed because of their influence in the budget process.

Chairman Daniels asked if there was an elected committee, would you expect them to attend all Selectmen, School Board,
Library Trustee, and Water Commission meetings so that they are up to date on things. As Selectmen, we talk about budg-
etary things throughout the year. How would they get educated to the point where the elected Boards are already educated?
George, suggested that they can enact bylaws that have an attendance policy.

Selectman Freel asked how many towns in New Hampshire have Municipal Budget Committees. George will research and
get the information to Selectman Freel.

Michael Thornton, Milford resident, asked if there’s been any cost savings or financial streamlining and efficiencies
achieved by such Boards. George said they can change budgets like at Library which you can’t do with an advisory com-
mittee. They have more authority in the budgeting process.

Selectman Labonte said there are towns in New Hampshire that have this. Pete said think about tonight’s meeting where
various departments want to encumber monies; the Select Board is responsible for developing and implementing the budg-
et. With a Municipal Budget Act, you will lose that dual role responsibility. People who don't have the responsibility for
making things happen and balancing an entire budget will be lost. This committee could be making decisions on cost alone
without understanding the implications. It's not a decision to be taken lightly. We have been very successful with what we
have already in place and they work well together.

George said it should be up to the voters to decide what direction they want their budget committee to take. Pete said
George could put in a petition warrant article. He advised the Board to strongly look at this because they will find that the
negatives far outweigh the positives. The number that the Budget Committee puts forward at the Deliberative session can't

11



630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 12/28/2020

be amended by the voters more than 10%. People sometimes vote in favor of a Municipal Budget Act because they think
they can control cost, unfortunately, the people developing the budgets are not the ones responsible for delivering the ser-
vices.

Hearing no motion from the Board, Chairman Daniels told George if he wanted to go forward with this warrant he could
draw up a petition warrant article with the correct number of signatures so it could be on the warrant.

b. Review of Board of Selectmen’s Rules of Procedures

Selectman Labonte asked to table this until the next meeting because of the time. Chairman Daniels said preferred to do it
now. Chairman Daniels said there are places on the agenda for “items not on the agenda” These sections are reserved for
public comments. If someone on the Board wants to talk about something that isn’t on the agenda, they can contact either
him or Tina to get it on the agenda and properly address it.

Selectman Labonte said some of those discussions can be put under 6 a). Discussions. Chairman Daniels said 6 a) is usual-
ly for specific requests. We can talk about them but if it’s something that needs a decision made, it can go up under 4 b).
other decisions. Selectman Labonte said if it was a Thursday afternoon and one of us was asked a question or had a ques-
tion, how would we be able to ask it without having to wait an additional two weeks. Chairman Daniels said to go to the
Town Administrator who is in charge of the day to day operations. It depends on what the question is. If it's critical or
time-sensitive we can always call a special meeting.

Selectman Labonte would like to amend rule 8 when Selectman materials are available. He would like the packets to be
available on Thursdays instead of Fridays. If he gets it on Friday, the only time he can ask town staff questions is on Mon-
day. He doesn’t feel he has enough time for review.

Chairman Daniels said that causes a problem. We set the agenda on Wednesdays, the public has until the end of Wednes-
day and the Board and Departments have until the end of Thursdays to add things. Tina does a great job trying to get it out
as early as possible on Fridays. Selectman Labonte interrupted and said he would like it brought back 24 hours so everyone
still has the same amount of time.

Administrator Shannon referenced Rule 28, Public Complaints and Suggestions to Board of Selectmen already exists and
tells you how that should be handled. He’s available 24/7 and has handled issues on the weekends before so if there are
questions, anyone can call him or staff, you don’t have to wait until Mondays. It would also make it easier if he could re-
ceive things in writing by e-mail so they don’t fall through the cracks, it makes it easier to track and he can pass it on to the
correct department.

Selectman Freel thanked Administrator Shannon and Tina for everything they do. He understands the deadlines. We meet
every two weeks; why not make the deadlines earlier. It would be nice to get the package earlier; weekends are busy with
family and things. Selectman Labonte still wants people to have the same amount of time, just a day earlier. He doesn’t do
emails. Nothing said he had to be tech savvy and e-mail everything.

Administrator Shannon said we will do whatever the Board decides, as far as information, you can drop off a letter anytime,
and it doesn’t have to be in an email, he can type or write it into whatever form he can.

Chairman Daniels said before making any decision, he would rather have Tina involved in the conversation. Deadlines
have been a problem with the Board and the Departments as well as things being added at the last minute. Moving it for-
ward gives even less time to get things ready to go on the agenda. Selectman Labonte said as elected officials they should
be entitled proper time to review items.

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS: -

8. SELECTMEN'S REPORTS/DISCUSSIONS.
a. FROM PROJECTS, SPECIAL BOARDS, COMMISSIONS & COMMITTEES.

Chairman Daniels asked who posts the minutes for the various committees and commissions. Town Administrator Shan-
non said he would have to ask Tina. Chairman Daniels asked all Board representatives to make sure their committees are

12



686
687
688
689
690
691
692
693
694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704

705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719

APPROVED MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING - 12/28/2020

up to date with posting their minutes and make sure your agenda is posted for all meetings. All meetings should be on the
Town calendar.
b. OTHER ITEMS (that are not on the agenda).

9. APPROVAL OF FINAL MINUTES - Selectman Dargie moved to approve the minutes of December 14, 2020, as
amended. Seconded by Selectman Freel. A roll call vote was taken with Selectman Dargie yes, Selectman Labonte
yes, Selectman Freel yes, and Chairman Daniels yes. All were in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

10. INFORMATION ITEMS REQUIRING NO DECISIONS.
a. Treasurer’s Report — October 2020 and November 2020
11. NOTICES. Notices were read.

12. NON-PUBLIC SESSION. A motion made by Selectman Dargie to enter into a non-public session in accordance
with (RSA 91-A:3, II(e)) Legal, seconded by Selectmen Freel. A roll call vote was taken with Selectman Dargie yes,
Selectman Labonte yes, Selectman Freel yes, and Chairman Daniels yes. The motion passed 4/0.

13. ADJOURNMENT: Selectman Dargie moved to adjourn at 10:30. Seconded by Selectman Freel. A roll call vote
was taken with Selectman Dargie yes, Selectman Dudziak yes, Selectman Labonte yes, Selectman Freel yes, and
Chairman Daniels yes. All were in favor. The motion passed 4/0.

Gary Daniels, Chairman Chris Labonte, Member

Paul Dargie, Vice Chairman David Freel, Member

Laura Dudziak, Member

13



	APPROVED
	MINUTES OF THE MILFORD BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING
	December 28, 2020
	PRESENT: Gary Daniels, Chairman (Zoom)   John Shannon, Town Administrator (Zoom)
	Paul Dargie, Vice Chairman (Zoom)  Tina Philbrick, Executive Assistant (Zoom)
	Laura Dudziak, Member (excused)
	Chris Labonte, Member (Zoom)
	David Freel, Member (Zoom)
	Gary Daniels, Chairman   Chris Labonte, Member
	_________________________
	Laura Dudziak, Member

